1958

George H. Stevens et al v. Ralph C. Memmott et al : Brief of Plaintiffs and Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In studying this brief, plaintiffs respectfully request the Court to refer constantly to Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 11, and Defendants' Exhibit No. 10, which are illustrations of the numerous claims in issue which will enable the Court to visualize the issues involved.

Plaintiffs commenced this action to quiet title to certain placer mining claims located about 8 miles west of Fillmore, Utah, whose principal value is that of volcanic ash and cinders which is primarily used to make building

blocks, poultry liter, and insulation. The plaintiffs brought an action to quiet title to these certain mining claims which are in direct conflict with those claimed by the defendants. Plaintiffs' appeal from the judgment of the lower court as to their placer mining claims known as Drake 1, Drake 8, Red Robin, and Red Robin A claims which, respectively, are in direct conflict with the defendants' claims known as Cinder Crater 14, Cinder Crater 13, and Red Hill No. 1.

Prior to the location of the above claims by either party herein, certain mining claims known as Black Dragon Nos. 4, 5 and 6 were validly located on the same ground at issue. These claims were all located October 27 and 28, 1937 (Defendants' Exhibit 58). Plaintiff Von Utley was present at the time these claims were located; he performed some of the work in building the discovery monuments and the corner monuments to locate said claims. At the request of one of these original locators, to-wit, Vern Smith, Mr. Utley placed the location notice of Black Dragon No. 5 in the discovery monument after Mr. Utley witnessed Mr. Smith fill said location notice out, at the direction of Mr. Smith (Tr. 133). The notice of location for Black Dragon No. 5 is that of a metes and bounds description commencing at the discovery monument (Defendants' Exhibit 58, page 5). The annual assessment work was performed on the Black Dragon Claims Nos. 1-6 each year to and including June 30, 1942 (Defendants' Exhibit 58). That subsequent to June 30, 1942, to and including June 30, 1947, the original locators and their successors in interest filed Notices of Intention to Hold instead of performing the annual labor on Black Dragon Claims 1 through 5 in accordance with the Congressional Act authorizing the suspension of annual labor on mining claims during the

war. The Congressional Act is that of H. R. 2370 Bill approved May 3, 1943 (Defendants' Exhibit 58). The last Notice of Intention to Hold filed for Black Dragon 6 was for the assessment year July 1, 1941, to July 1, 1942.

Defendants located their Cinder Crater Claims as follows:

Cinder Crater 5, March 5, 1947 (Answer and Counter-claim)

Cinder Crater 13, July 28, 1947 (Defendants' No. 3)

Cinder Crater 14, July 28, 1947 (Defendants' No. 2)

AT THE TIME OF THE LOCATION OF CINDER CRATER NOS. 5, 13, AND 14, THE BLACK DRAGON CLAIMS 1 THROUGH 5 WERE VALID MINING CLAIMS IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT, AND DEFENDANTS CLAIM CINDER CRATER NO. 14 WAS NOT A VALID LOCATION IN THAT THERE WAS AN EXISTING VALID MINING CLAIM ON THE SAME GROUND.

The following is a chart summarizing the mining claims in direct conflict of the respective parties herein and the times of their location in order of the date of their location:

Black Dragon No. 4—Located 10-27-37 by Plaintiffs' predecessor in title, annual notices filed until 7-1-48.

Defendants' Cinder Crater No. 5—Located 3-5-47.

Plaintiffs' Red Robin—Located 6-22-50 and Red Robin A located 1-22-53.

Defendants' Red Hill No. 1—Located 9-27-56—after suit commenced.

Black Dragon No. 5—Located 10-28-37—Annual notices filed until 7-1-48.

Defendants' Cinder Crater No. 14—Located 7-28-47.

Plaintiffs' Drake No. 1—Located 7-8-52, and Plaintiffs' Drake No. 8, located 7-14-55.

Black Dragon No. 6—Located 10-29-37.

Amended 6-29-39, and increased in size to include Black Dragon No. 5.

Annual Notices filed until 7-1-42.

Defendants' Cinder Crater No. 14—Located 7-28-47.

Plaintiffs' Drake No. 1—Located 7-8-52.

Plaintiffs' Drake No. 8—Located 7-14-55.

During the course of the pre-trials of this case, it was conceded by defendants that their claim Cinder Crater No. 5 was not a valid claim for the reason that they located their claim at a time when Black Dragon No. 4 was a valid mining claim in force and effect upon the same ground. With full knowledge of plaintiffs' claim to this ground and after suit was commenced, defendants top filed defendants' Red Robin and Red Robin A claims with their claim Red Hill No. 1 on 9-7-56 (Defendants' Exhibit No. 10).

Prior to the location of Red Hill No. 1 by defendants, plaintiffs had been mining the same ground, their claim known as Red Robin A (Tr. 111) (Tr. 214, 215).

The uncontradicted evidence discloses that plaintiff Von Utey was present at the time the old mining claim Black Dragon No. 5 was located and assisted in its location; that he knows the exact location of said claim which is described by metes and bounds description (Tr. 133); that Mr. Utey used the same monuments as the old Black Dragon No. 5 in locating his claim Drake No. 1 (Tr. 174, 175). Mr. Shelton, a mining engineer and licensed surveyor, discovered the original Notice of Location of the Black Dragon No. 5 in a monument located on the Plaintiffs' claim

Drake No. 1 and No. 8 (Tr. 90). That the mining claim Black Dragon No. 5 was in force and effect at the time defendants located their Cinder Crater No. 14 (Defendants' Exhibit 58); that Black Dragon No. 6 was in force and effect at the time defendants' Cinder Crater No. 14 was located, which invalidated defendants' location of Cinder Crater No. 14 and left the ground open for plaintiffs to locate their Drake No. 1 and Drake No. 8 upon the same ground (Defendants' Exhibit 58, Defendants' Exhibit 11, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 10). The jury found that the defendant had constructed a road for his assessment work for the year ending July 1, 1952 and July 1, 1953, as illustrated by a red pencil line on Defendants' Exhibit 11, between the letters B and C on said exhibit (Tr. 288). That it required 1½ days work to construct the road between the letters B and C as illustrated on Defendants' Exhibit 11 (Tr. 290). The area in which defendants claim the road was built near the south boundary of their Cinder Crater 13 was an area in which defendants had no valid claim whatsoever; that it belonged to a third party, and the District Court for Millard County rules that defendants did not have title to the area in which the road was built and never had title to said ground (Tr. 263). Assuming that defendants did build this road, which plaintiffs claim is fictitious and physically impossible to build in the area it was testified to have been built, and in the manner it was said to have been built, the defendants did build the alleged road on someone else's claims, for which they may not claim credit as assessment work on their own claims. The jury found that this road, which is alleged to have been built in 1½ days by defendant was valued at \$112.00 (Special Interrogatories). That a portion of the alleged road was built upon defendants' Cin-

der Crater 14, which would make defendants' assessment work for Cinder Crater 14 for the assessment year ending July 1, 1949, and determines whether or not Cinder Crater 13 was valid or not at the time Red Robin claim of plaintiffs was located by plaintiffs. It is apparent that \$112.00 worth of assessment work is not sufficient work for three claims that defendants claim, when the said claims are not contiguous. The area in which defendants claim to have built the alleged road is an area where there are large volcanic rock formations, which would be a physical impossibility for defendants to build such a road in the manner they described; that once a road is made it is ascertainable for many years afterward for the reason that the top soil is disturbed and the brush will not grow back, leaving it free from brush; that a person could not even ride a horse through that area, let alone drive a tractor (Tr. 318, 320, 325). There never was a road in the area that defendants illustrated on Defendants' Exhibit 11 on that portion of the road allegedly built on defendants' Cinder Crater 14 (Tr. 352, proposed exhibit of surveyor's map, which was not allowed in evidence, Tr. 34, Tr. 343).

There was no evidence of a road on plaintiffs' Drake No. 1 and Drake No. 8, as described by defendants on Defendants' Exhibit No. 11 (Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 29) which is the area that defendant alleges road was built clearly discloses that there was no road there at the time plaintiffs worked this area, and that defendants did not strip the overburden off the area he testified to, to-wit, the southeast corner of Drake No. 1. See also the surveyor's map which court refused to allow jury to see or take to the jury room.

Plaintiffs' Exhibit 27 clearly illustrates that it was

plaintiff who stripped the overburden off; the tracks are those of the plaintiff's tractor in the photograph.

The defendants testified that they removed overburden in the southeast corner of Drake No. 1 for their assessment work for July 1, 1951, to July 1, 1952 (Tr. 229). Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 29 clearly illustrates that the overburden in the southwest corner of Drake No. 1 was not stripped as defendants testified; that at the time plaintiffs commenced work in 1956 in this area, it was not disturbed by defendants or anyone else. Surveyor's map not admitted illustrates no such work as described by defendants in southwest corner of Drake No. 1.

At a hearing for a preliminary injunction, held May 8, 1956, the defendant Ralph Memmott testified that he knew the plaintiff Mr. Utley had a claim known as Drake No. 3 at the time he top filed this claim with his claim known as Black Lava No. 1, which he located April 2, 1956, after suit commenced. The excuse used by defendant Ralph Memmott was that he checked the records to see if he could locate the claim by the records; then if he couldn't he would top file the claim; that if there was nothing on the records to satisfy him, he would then proceed to file (Pg. 68, 69, 70, 71, Transcript of the Preliminary Hearing). Yet the defendant Ralph Memmott had actual knowledge of this claim and where it was located; and the lower court so found (see Memorandum Decision Par. 5). It is apparent from the record that defendants habitually jump claims whenever he is not satisfied with the public record, and with no regard to the actual or physical condition of the claims with reference to work done or staking; they rely entirely upon the lack of a surveyed description of record, not by physical inspection of the property. Whenever Mr. Ralph Mem-

mott sees that someone has located a sizeable deposit of cinders, he immediately goes to the record to see if it satisfies him as to its proper location. If the record does not satisfy him, he then jumps the claim by filing for record. He admits that the only knowledge he has is that of record; without any regard as to what he knows by a physical inspection. There is no valid claim until it is recorded, in the opinion of Mr. Memmott (Tr. 275). During the deposition of Mr. Ralph Memmott, taken in April, 1956, he specifically admitted that he did not claim any interest in the plaintiffs' claim Drake No. 3, as was illustrated on defendants' map then before him at that time (Tr. 270).

At the several pre-trials held on this case, the purpose was an attempt to simplify the issues and to limit them. At these pre-trials and depositions it was determined that two of the claims, Red Robin A and Drake No. 3, belonging to plaintiffs, would not be issues for the reason that defendants then had no valid interest in said claims. Since commencement of suit defendants jumped both of these claims, and brought them right back into issue, and by so doing succeeded in confusing and increasing the heretofore simplified issues. This certainly defeats the purpose of the pre-trial procedure.

There was a conflict in the evidence as to which of the parties performed the annual labor on the claims in issue, and the places where the work was claimed to have been done. But the vast preponderance of the evidence was in favor of the plaintiffs and against the defendants. The only witness the defendants produced was one of the defendants himself, Mr. Ralph Memmott, who is a vitally interested party. The plaintiffs produced disinterested witnesses who had no interest in the outcome of the trial, to

wit: Mr. A. R. Shelton, a registered surveyor and mining engineer; Mr. Culbert Robison, a police officer for the city of Fillmore, Utah; Mr. Lowell Peterson, a garage mechanic and truck driver, together with interested parties such as Mr. George H. Stevens, Mr. VonUtley, and Mrs. Von Utley, all of whom are parties to this action.

There are a number of discrepancies of defendant's testimony. He relates in the Hearing for a Preliminary Injunction that he shipped cinders from his Cinder Crater No. 14, and has not shipped from Cinder Crater No. 5 (Page 20 of said Transcript). On the deposition of Mr. Ralph Memmott, he testified that he had not shipped cinders from either Cinder Crater No. 13 or No. 14, but did ship several loads from Cinder Crater No. 5 (Page 12 and 13 of his Deposition).

Mr. Memmott testified at the trial that Mr. Utley was mining in the area in which defendant had removed the overburden from (Tr. 236). Plaintiffs' Exhibit 29 clearly shows that the spot which plaintiff has now mined in Drake No. 1 and No. 8, was not stripped as Mr. Memmott testified it was. This photograph was taken prior to the time the same area was mined by plaintiffs. Plaintiffs submit that defendant Mr. Ralph Memmott is guilty of perjurying his testimony before this Court on these matters, and should not be allowed to prevail on any issues by reason of the said perjury.

In addition to the above perjured testimony, Mr. Ralph Memmott testified that on his deposition that his Cinder Crater claims No. 13 and No. 14 are both contiguous (Page 10, Memmott Deposition). That the record clearly shows that Mr. Memmott did not own the vast majority of the alleged Cinder Crater No. 13 claim, for the reason that it

had always belonged to another party, and the defendants' Cinder Crater claims No. 13 and No. 14 have never been contiguous (Tr. 263, 264).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING DEFENDANTS TO AMEND THEIR SECOND AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM SO AS TO BRING BEFORE THE JURY THE ISSUE OF PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM RED ROBIN A WHICH HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN ADMITTED VALID IN PRE-TRIAL; BY REASON OF DEFENDANTS' TOP FILING PLAINTIFFS' RED ROBIN A AFTER SUIT HAD COMMENCED; RIGHTS TO BE DETERMINED WERE THE RIGHTS THAT EXISTED AT TIME SUIT WAS COMMENCED.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING DEFENDANTS TO AMEND THEIR SECOND AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM TO BRING BEFORE THE COURT THE ISSUE OF PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM DRAKE NO. 3 AND DEFENDANTS' CLAIM BLACK LAVA NO. 1 WHICH WAS LOCATED BY DEFENDANTS ON TOP OF PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM AFTER THE LAW SUIT WAS COMMENCED AND WHEN DEFENDANTS HAD ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF PLAINTIFFS' VALID CLAIM.

POINT III

THE COURT ERRED IN REFUSING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO AMEND THE PRE-TRIAL ORDER AND

PLAINTIFFS' AMENDED COMPLAINT TO PUT BEFORE THE COURT AND JURY THE ISSUE OF THE PHYSICAL LOCATION OF THE BLACK DRAGON NO. 5 MINING CLAIM; THAT IT WAS IN FORCE AND EFFECT AT THE TIME DEFENDANTS LOCATED THEIR CINDER CRATER NO. 14 CLAIM; THAT CINDER CRATER NO. 14 WAS THEREFORE INVALID AT THE TIME PLAINTIFFS LOCATED THEIR DRAKE NO. 1 AND NO. 8. THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO MAKE A FINDING OF FACT AS TO THE PHYSICAL LOCATION OF BLACK DRAGON NO. 5 AND THAT THE UNCONTROVERTED EVIDENCE WAS TO THE EFFECT THAT BLACK DRAGON NO. 5 WAS THE SAME PHYSICAL LOCATION OF CINDER CRATER NO. 14; THAT PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM DRAKE NO. 1 AND NO. 8 WERE VALID BECAUSE OF THE INVALIDITY OF CINDER CRATER NO. 14.

POINT IV

THE COURT ERRED IN ITS FAILURE TO INSTRUCT JURY UPON THE UNCONTROVERTED EVIDENCE THAT THERE WAS SUFFICIENT LABOR PERFORMED ON PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM RED ROBIN A DURING THE SPRING OF 1956, PRIOR TO THE LOCATION OF DEFENDANTS' CLAIM RED HILL NO. 1.

POINT V

THE COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO ALLOW INTO EVIDENCE AS AN EXHIBIT THE SURVEYOR'S MAP MADE BY MR. A. R. SHELTON, ILLUSTRATING THE CLAIMS IN ISSUE AND THE WORKINGS AND

IMPROVEMENTS ON THE SAME CLAIMS AS OF THE DATE OF THE SURVEY. THE COURT ERRED BY UN-DUE INTERFERENCE WITH THE DIRECT EXAMINATION OF MR. A. R. SHELTON WHICH DISCREDITED THE WITNESS IN THE EYES OF THE JURY.

POINT VI

THE COURT ERRED IN RULING THAT BLACK DRAGON CLAIM NO. 6 WAS INVALID AT THE TIME DEFENDANTS LOCATED THEIR CLAIM CINDER CRATER NO. 14 BY REASON OF THE FAILURE OF THE OWNERS OF SAID BLACK DRAGON NO. 6 TO FILE AN AFFIDAVIT OF LABOR OR A NOTICE OF INTENTION TO HOLD FOR THE ASSESSMENT YEAR ENDING JULY 1, 1947, OR BETWEEN JULY 1, 1947, AND JULY 23, 1947, THE DATE OF THE LOCATION OF CINDER CRATER NO. 14 BY DEFENDANTS.

POINT VII

THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR EITHER THE COURT OR THE JURY TO VIEW THE PREMISES EITHER AS TO ALL THE CLAIMS IN DISPUTE OR AS TO CINDER CRATER NO. 13, NO. 14, DRAKE NO. 1 AND NO. 8.

POINT VIII

DEFENDANTS WILFULLY MISREPRESENTED MATERIAL FACTS RELATING TO ASSESSMENT WORK ON THE CLAIMS CINDER CRATER NO. 13 AND NO. 14; THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO INSTRUCT THE JURY UPON THE PREPONDERANCE

OF THE EVIDENCE IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS ON THE ISSUES OF THE CLAIMS RED ROBIN A, RED ROBIN, DRAKE NO. 1 AND DRAKE NO. 8.

THE ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING DEFENDANTS TO AMEND THEIR SECOND AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM SO AS TO BRING BEFORE THE JURY THE ISSUE OF PLAINTIFFS' CLAIM RED ROBIN A WHICH HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN ADMITTED VALID IN PRE-TRIAL; BY REASON OF DEFENDANTS' TOP FILING PLAINTIFFS' RED ROBIN A AFTER SUIT HAD COMMENCED; RIGHTS TO BE DETERMINED WERE THE RIGHTS THAT EXISTED AT TIME SUIT WAS COMMENCED.

One of the main functions of a Pre-Trial is to determine the issues of the case and to limit them as far as possible. The defendants conceded to plaintiffs at the first pre-trial on this case that their old Cinder Crater No. 5, which was in direct conflict with plaintiffs' Red Robin A and Red Robin, was invalid for the reason that when Cinder Crater No. 5 was located, there was a valid claim in force and effect, namely, Black Dragon No. 4 (Defendants' Exhibit No. 58).

There must be an end to the issues of a case at one time or another, and the issues should be determined as of the date of the filing of the lawsuit and the commencement of the action as between the parties to said action. In Healy vs. Rupp, 86 P. 1015, the Colorado Court ruled that in application for a patent to a mining claim, "the rights of

an adverse claimant to a mining location are limited to those existing at the time of the filing of his adverse (claim) so that he is not entitled to urge a subsequent discovery for the purpose of preventing the issuance of a patent to the applicant." On page 1017, the Colorado Court states:

"if he had no claim at the time of filing the adverse, he will not be heard to assert right to premises in dispute by virtue of one brought into existence thereafter."

78-40-4, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, is as follows:

"Termination of title pending action. If plaintiff shows right to recover at time the action was commenced, but it appears that his right has terminated during pendency of action, the verdict and judgment must be according to the fact, and plaintiff may recover damages for withholding the property."

It is clear that the Utah Legislature intended that the status quo be maintained by parties to an action during the pendency of a quiet title action. Certainly if this were not the case, there might not be an end to the controversy between the parties.

74 C. J. S. 145. Quiet Title No. 95.

"The decree must be confined to a determination and adjustment of existing rights in particular property in controversy."

In *Aluman vs. Hoofer* (Wash.) 1905, 79 P. 953, the court holds as follows:

"Where, immediately after a judgment in an action to recover possession of certain mining claims, finding that neither of the parties had any possessory rights in the claims in question, plaintiffs in that action relocated the claims, and thereafter did the re-

quired assessment work thereon, finding that such relocations were made on unoccupied public land, as required by law, was proper.”

The rights existing at the time of the commencement of the action are those that are determinative as between the parties. There was certainly lack of good faith on the part of defendants to cloud the issues and expand them after pre-trial. The uncontroverted testimony was that plaintiffs were not only doing their assessment work, (minimum of \$112.00 for Red Robin A), but that they were mining the property. Pursuant to the granting of an injunction to defendants prohibiting plaintiffs from working the claim Red Robin A, plaintiffs discontinued working this claim and moved onto their Red Robin claim. Certainly defendants are estopped from jumping plaintiffs’ claim under these circumstances.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING DEFENDANTS TO AMEND THEIR SECOND AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM TO BRING BEFORE THE COURT THE ISSUE OF PLAINTIFFS’ CLAIM DRAKE NO. 3 AND DEFENDANTS’ CLAIM BLACK LAVA NO. 1 WHICH WAS LOCATED BY DEFENDANTS ON TOP OF PLAINTIFFS’ CLAIM AFTER THE LAW SUIT WAS COMMENCED AND WHEN DEFENDANTS HAD ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF PLAINTIFFS’ VALID CLAIM.

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