1958

George H. Stevens et al v. Ralph C. Memmott et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

Point 1

The Jury's findings that respondents had done the required annual labor on Cinder Crater No. 13 and 14 and that the appellants had not done the required amount of annual labor for their Red Robin "A" was amply supported by the evidents and will not be disturbed.

In this case the appellants were granted a jury trial over the objection of the respondents. The questions of fact were submitted to the jury by Special Interrogatories. The appellants presented evidence of annual labor performed on their Red Robin "A" claim and this evidence is found at pages 11, 214, 215, 218 and 349 of the Transcript. This was disputed by the respondent and Special Interrogatory No. 2 (Tr. 365) was submitted to the jury to find if the required annual labor was actual-

ly performed. The jury found unanimously that it had not been performed. The appellants' contention appears to be that the Court should have ruled as matter of law that the annual labor had been performed but it is submitted this is indeed a novel contention in view of the fact there was evidence submitted and it was a question of fact upon which the jury should find.

Although the findings of the jury would give to appellants most of their Red Robin Claim, actually the only conflict involving this claim was in a very small area in the northwest corner of respondents' Cinder Crater No. 13 claim. As the Cinder Crater No. 13 was located prior, the jury heard ample evidence as to the respondents' annual labor for this claim for the year ending July 1, 1949 consisting of removing of overburden and the construction of a road to the claim (Tr. 222-227). Special interrogatory No. 5 (Tr. 366) was submitted to the jury and it found that the respondents had performed the required annual labor. The testimony of the respondents was detailed and complete as to the dates, type of equipment used and the amount and value of the work and it is submitted that the findings of the jury should not be disturbed.

The remaining conflict was between the appellants' Drake No. 1 and 8 claims which covered generally the same ground as respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14. Here again (Tr. 229-237) the respondents supplied detailed evidence as to the work for the year in question, showing the amount and value of the work done in the removing of over-burden preparatory to mining and the building of roads. The appellants disputed this and submitted evidence and photographs trying to prove the respondents had not done the work. Again this very question was submitted to the jury by Special Interrogatory No. 6 (Tr. 366), and again the jury found that the work was done.

As to whether annual labor has been performed for any given year by a locator is always a question of fact. It is common knowledge that this testimony is almost always in conflict and after wild claims are made by the conflicting parties, a jury must weigh the testimony and arrive at some finding. It is on such factual questions as this that the wisdom of submitting the special issues by special interrogatories is clearly evident. The court, by clearing away the chaff, makes it possible for the jury to make a clear cut decision and one which should not be disturbed if there was evidence to support the finding as was the case here.

Point 2

It was not error for the lower court to refuse to accept the map of the appellants' witness, engineer A. R. Shelton, as it was only a summary of his testimony and it would have been improper for the jury to have had this map in addition to the testimony.

The appellants are raising strenuous objections to the lower court's refusal to accept a map prepared by appellants' witness, engineer A. R. Shelton. Engineer Shelton had surveyed all the claims in question preparatory to becoming a witness. He testified at great length (Tr. 22-66). He testified as to what he had done and seen on these conflicting claims. Most of the testimony was relevant and competent. At the conclusions of his testimony, appellant offered a map made by Mr. Shelton which map as stated in appellants' brief recited "upon which he drew the results of his work and examination of the claims at the time the survey was made and recorded the monuments observed in his thorough examination of plaintiffs' claims." The court refused to receive as evidence this map until a further study of the map by counsel could be made, with the court's suggestion (Tr. 33-34)

that counsel discuss the admissability of the map. The record is silent as to any further offer of the map, but even so, it would have been clearly incompetent as it was only a favorable resume or re-capitulation of Engineer Shelton's testimony and which, under our rules of procedure, the jury could have taken to the jury room and studied and used. But for a jury to hear the testimony and then be able to take with them a picture of the testimony so as to refresh their memories, would have been highly improper. Rule 47(m) of our Rules of Procedure states what can be taken to the jury room and expressly states that notes taken by a juror can be taken but "none taken by any other person." It is submitted, the map was only Shelton's notes. Furthermore, even assuming this type of evidence had not been incompetent, the appellants surely have no room to complain because the jury heard the testimony given by the witness, all of which was the same as that on the map and a refusal of the map as an exhibit would not have been prejudicial.

Point 3

Refusal by Lower Court of Appellants' motion to allow jury to visit premises is purely discretionary and in the absence of abuse of discretion, will not be disturbed.

The appellants requested that the jury be allowed to make an inspection of the claims in question. The request was denied on the ground that the evidence showed that there were many diggings and workings and roads throughout the entire area and the court was afraid the jury would be more confused than ever after the inspection.

A request for a jury inspection is always addressed to the sound discretion of the court and this rule is so elementary there need be no citations of authorities. But in any event, if this court desires to inquire into the question of whether there was an abuse of discretion, it only has to look at the testimony of one Culbert Robinson, witness for appellants, (Tr. 309-328). Robinson was taken to the premises during the course of the trial purely for the purpose of qualifying him as a witness. But his testimony was the most confusing of any testimony at the entire trial. There is no reason to believe that the jurors themselves would have been any less confused.

Point 4

Refusal of lower court of appellants' motion to amend pleadings and the pre-trial order after trial had commenced was discretionary and should not be disturbed on appeal.

Again we have a matter for the court's discretion. As shown in the statement of facts there is a conflict between appellants' Drake No. 1 and 8 and respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14. The respondents' location was on July 28, 1947, several years prior to the Drake locations. Therefore, the appellants, in order to defeat the respondents' location set up that an old claim, known as the Black Dragon No. 6, covered generally the same ground. This old claim had been located approximately ten years prior to respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14 and the claim is that this Black Dragon was a valid subsisting claim on July 28, 1947 so as to defeat the respondents' location of their Cinder Crater 14. It is admitted that the general rule of law is that if there is a valid, subsisting claim on mining ground when a subsequent locator attempts to locate, the subsequent locator gets nothing by his location. Several pre-trials were held in this case and also

a number of hearings on preliminary matters. The appellants' complaint was also amended so as to set up this old Black Dragon No. 6 claim. In all the hearings, the pre-trials and pleadings, the appellants were relying upon the old Black Dragon No. 6, located by people not concerned with this controversy, to defeat the respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14 location.

The evidence shows that when the locators of the Black Dragon No. 6 located this claim on October 28, 1937, they also located on the same day Black Dragon Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. An amended location notice on the Black Dragon No. 6 was recorded June 28, 1939 which tied this claim to government survey corners and government subdivisions as the first location had not done. Thereafter, the locators did annual labor or filed Notices of Intent to hold all of the Black Dragon claims up to and including July 1, 1942. This is all shown in an abstract of title to the Black Dragon claims, Defendants' exhibit No. 58. This abstract shows that the locators of the Black Dragon claims sold Black Dragon Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 to a purchaser in 1942. Thereafter Notices of Intent to hold were filed by the new owner for all the years thereafter including July 1, 1947, but only on the claims purchased, or Black Dragon Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. But Black Dragon No. 6 was the claim in conflict with respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14 and yet since no annual labor was performed or Notice of Intent to Hold in lieu thereof was recorded, this claim forfeited.

Apparently the appellants did not know until shortly before trial that the Black Dragon No. 6 upon which they had relied in order to defeat respondents' Cinder Crater No. 14 had lapsed for failure to do annual labor or include it in the Notices of Intention to Hold. The record shows (Tr. 144) that one day before the trial commenced, that counsel for respondent was informed that the appel-

lants claimed that Black Dragon No. 5 and 6 were actually one and the same claims and claimed the same ground. But respondents had prepared their entire case for trial on the theory that Black Dragon No. 6 had lapsed and would be of no concern. A claim that Black Dragon No. 5 and 6 were one and the same claim completely changed the entire case because Black Dragon No. 5 was still good at the time respondents located their Cinder Crater No. 14. It would have been highly prejudicial to have to meet the validity of Black Dragon No. 5 after reliance on appellants' pleadings, the preliminary hearings and the pre-trial order, particularly in view of the fact that the appellants had had more than ample opportunity to amend so as to make Black Dragon No. 5 an issue. Objection was made to amending the complaint and the pre-trial order so as to bring Black Dragon No. 5 in issue, (Tr. 144). The jury was then excused and the court examined quite fully, the appellant relying upon the Black Dragon claims (Tr. 136-140). The court thereupon ruled that it would be inequitable and prejudicial for respondents to have to meet the validity of Black Dragon No. 5 and denied the motion to amend the complaint and pre-trial order.

It is the general rule of law followed by this court in many cases that such an amendment would be prejudicial to the adverse party and should not be allowed. See Utah cases, *Johnson vs. Continental Casualty Co.*, 300 P. 1032, *Johnson vs. Brinkerhoff*, 57 Pac. 2d 1132, *Benson vs. Oregon Short Line*, 99 Pac. 1072, *Newton vs. Tracy Loan & Trust Co.* 40 Pac. 2d 204. Also that since it is within the sound discretion of the court, it is not an abuse of discretion when refused at or just before the trial.

Point 5

Federal statutes or resolutions dispensing with re-

quirement of annual labor and allowing notice of intent to hold in lieu thereof require the actual filing of the notice of intention to hold or the claim will forfeit.

The appellants' contentions at Point VI of their brief that it is not necessary for an owner of a mining claim to actually comply with the law in order to hold the claim is entirely without merit. It is submitted that when the federal laws or resolutions of Congress provide in unambiguous terms what must be done, they mean exactly what they say.

The Federal government at numerous times has relieved a locator of a mining claim from doing annual labor. Congress did this back in the 1893 "Depression" and again in 1917 and 1918 during World War I. Also during the "Depression" of the nineteen thirties and again during World War II from 1943 to 1949. In each instance because of some national emergency, annual labor was dispensed with. But in each instance Congress has required that in lieu of annual labor, the locator **shall** file in the County where the claim is located, a Notice of Intention to Hold. The reason for this is obvious as the locator must show good faith in his intentions to hold and he must do something to give notice to the world that he has not abandoned his claim. The provision suspending annual labor which applies to this case was a resolution adopted by Congress May 3, 1943 and designated as H.R. 2370. It provided that the requirements of \$100.00 worth of labor per claim "is hereby suspended as to all mining claims in the United States, including the Territory of Alaska until the hour of 12 o'clock Meridian on the 1st day of July after the cessation of hostilities in the present war as determined by proclamation of the President or concurrent resolution of the Congress; **Provided, that every person claiming any such mining claim, in order to**

obtain the benefits of this act, shall file, or cause to be filed, in the office where the location notice or certificate is recorded, on or before 12 o'clock meridian of July 1 for each year this act remains in effect, a notice of his desire to hold said mining claim under this act." This provision was in effect until 1949.

In all cases found by this writer, where this question has been ruled upon by the courts, it has been held, with one exception, that the recording of a Notice of Intent to Hold in lieu of annual labor is mandatory in order to hold the claim. Some of these cases are *Kramer vs. Gladding, McBean & Co.* 85 Pac. 2d 552 (Cal.), *Pine grove Nevada Gold Mining Co. vs. Freeman*, 171 Pac. 2d 366, (Nevada). There do not appear to be too many cases involving these suspension statutes or resolutions and it is submitted that the reason for this is because the requirements are so obvious that there has been no reason to appeal. It most certainly would be wrong for a mining claimant to hold a claim indefinitely, without doing any work or even complying with the suspension requirements. He could hold a claim by having a secret intention, not communicated to any one, to eventually go back and assert ownership of the claim.

The only case found by this writer and which is cited in appellants' brief which appears to hold the recording of a Notice of Intent to Hold is not necessary is the case of *Donoghue vs. Tonopah Oriental Mining Co.* 198 Pac. 553 (Nevada). This is a very interesting case but even a casual reading will clearly show it gives no help to the appellants. There the several owners of a group of claims, partly in Nye County and partly in Esmeralda County, Nevada attempted to file a Notice of Intent to Hold under the resolution of Congress for the year 1918 which for all practical purposes is the same as that adopted during World War II. But the owners of the

claim were in doubt as to whether their claim was in Nye County or Esmeralda County as the County line was still in some doubt although surveyed a few years previously. The owners tried in every way to comply with the law and tried to record their notice in Nye County, but the County Recorder, a person upon whom they relied, told them it should be recorded in Esmeralda County where it was eventually recorded. There was no question about their intent and good faith but they recorded the notice in the wrong county acting in good faith and in bona fide compliance with the law. The Nevada Supreme Court stated that it was not a question of **construction of the resolution as its meaning was clear** but that it should not be applied under the peculiar circumstances of the case. With the wisdom of this decision, the Respondents agree but it clearly is not controlling in this case. In this Nevada case the locators made an honest attempt to comply but in the case at bar, the owner did exactly nothing over a period of approximately five years. If the 1943 resolution of Congress has no application to the present case, then it has no application at all. Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court, in the Pine Grove Case, *supra*, very carefully explained and distinguished the old Donoghue case.

Point No. 6

A re-location of a mining claim by a party after suit has been commenced but before trial, is good providing appropriate pleadings are filed.

The appellants raise a hue and cry that the respondents located their Red Hill No. 1 claim in conflict with the prior location of appellants' Red Robin "A" claim. But here the record shows that the respondents had located years prior to either claim, their Cinder Crater No. 5 on the same ground. Before trial the respondents con-

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